
 

 

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 8 Mawrth 2012  

 

Amser: 
13:00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Siân Phipps 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8582 
enterprise.committee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

Cyfarfod preifat (13.00 - 13.15) 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2. Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a 
meysydd awyr Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth (13.15 - 14.00) (Tudalennau 
1 - 34)  
Maes Awyr Caerdydd 
Papur 1 
Steve Hodgetts, Cyfarwyddwr Datblygu Busnes a Masnach 
Catrin Elis, Rheolwr y Wasg a Chysylltiadau Cyhoeddus  

3. Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a 
meysydd awyr Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth (14.00 - 14.45) (Tudalennau 
35 - 39)  
Flybe 
Papur 2 
Niall Duffy, Pennaeth Cysylltiadau Cyhoeddus a Materion Cyhoeddus 
  

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enterprise and Business Committee  

 

Future of Welsh ports and airports  

 

Evidence of Cardiff Airport 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

v Cardiff Airport is widely agreed to be of economic importance to Wales. 

v The development of independent and objective data related to passenger and cargo 

forecasts, as well as the economic benefits associated with aviation overall, would 

support policy and strategy development. 

v Cardiff Airport exists in a competitive aviation context in which market conditions are 

key factors. 

v To achieve an optimised network, airline risks must be mitigated by targeted, tangible 

support linked directly to national economic policies and priorities. 

v The scale of support required is beyond that which the airport alone can reasonably 

provide. 

v Every option for the delivery of appropriate support must be pursued.  

v The infrastructure supporting Cardiff Airport – including the airfield, terminal and 

access routes - is not currently a critical inhibitor to route development, nor will 

infrastructure expansion alone lead to favourable route development decisions.  

v The effective delivery of new or expanded services could be enhanced by improving 

communications and coordination between airport stakeholders within Wales; through 

the establishment of either a new single authority or a multi-agency task force 

providing synergies, support and better use of resources to achieve commonly 

shared outcomes; and, through joint marketing and promotional efforts supported by 

Government policy and investment programmes.  

Tudalen 2



 

2. INTRODUCTION 

This document addresses the key questions of the Enterprise and Business Committee’s 

terms of reference at a macro level. Further data to describe the competitive context for 

Cardiff Airport can be found in the accompanying data paper which is referenced herein and 

separately deposited. 

 

How important are major Welsh ports and airports, both to the economy of their own 

regions and to Wales as a whole? 

Cardiff Airport is widely acknowledged to be of importance to the economic well being of 

Wales and in particular South Wales, as was recently emphasised in public comments by the 

First Minister. This reflects the consensus of independent research and examples of airports 

supporting other regions.1 Whilst it is sometimes difficult to disaggregate airports from 

aviation as whole there is widespread evidence that airports are an economic influence.2 

Even where there are opposing views, the divergence is simply about the scale and 

appropriateness of the economic contribution.3 

It is noted that other studies, when assessing the economic impacts of aviation, use a holistic 

approach. This requires the aggregation of direct employment and monetary contribution 

(money spent and taxes) together with indirect contribution (supplier employment etc) and 

induced contributions (tourism receipts, materials and goods flow attributable to the use of 

aviation). Such a study has not been performed for Cardiff Airport or Welsh aviation but 

would be a beneficial study for the Government to sponsor in order to quantify the net 

benefits of Cardiff Airport and other airports operating in Wales. This would also provide an 

estimated value for the benefits realised by recapturing demand currently served by non-

Welsh airports.  

Connectivity is best defined as the ability to reach a range of destinations at a reasonable 

generalised cost.4 Cardiff Airport is the airport for the capital city and serves the largest 

population in Wales.  This creates a level of expectation regarding the range of airline 

services Cardiff Airport should facilitate.  This expectation is anecdotal and is often based 

upon comparisons with Edinburgh and Belfast Airports, and ignores factors such as the 

differences in terms of population, demographics, competition, over-water flying or proximity 

                                                      
1
 SQW 2008 report for Scottish Enterprise 

2
 Oxera What is contribution of aviation to UK economy 2009, BCC Economic Impacts of hub airports 2009 

3
 Friends of the Earth the Economic Impact of Bristol Airport 2005 

4
 Oxera 2010 DfT Connectivity report 

Tudalen 3



 

to London. Cardiff Airport’s vision remains to serve as much of South Wales’ aviation needs 

as possible and it remains extremely active in marketing to airlines in the UK, Europe, the 

USA and elsewhere in the world.   

 

What factors limit realisation of the potential offered by major Welsh ports and 

airports; what opportunities are available to develop this potential; and how can these 

be realised? 

Cardiff Airport serves approximately 45% of the demand for air travel from South Wales. 

Potential customers mainly use Heathrow and Bristol Airports with some usage of other 

airports.5 There is a perception that the number of airlines and tour operators, and the 

services they provide, are entirely within the control of airports; however, this is not the case. 

Airports can influence and encourage an airline to serve a given market, but cannot compel 

them to do so. In the UK this is further influenced by the open competitive market for air 

transport which makes any airport market highly contestable.6 There is also a natural South 

East ‘pull’ as airlines wish to consolidate their operating models, ensure efficiency and 

concentrate demand.7  

The socio-economic characteristics of the region together with strong competition from other 

airports create a challenging market for the promotion of new or expanded airline services. . 

Specific examples are the large networks provided by Ryanair and easyJet at Bristol Airport 

which offers a significant pull for Welsh consumers, with some 15% of Bristol Airport’s 

passengers being Welsh originating or destined for Wales. These airlines enjoy significant 

economies of scope and scale and are less willing to consider fragmentation by serving the 

Welsh market directly from Cardiff Airport.  

An airline will only serve a market if they perceive it will be profitable and a strategic fit to its 

operation. Where airlines have large scale operations elsewhere with good economies of 

scope and scale, they will be reluctant to fragment them without attendant risks being 

covered. These risks can also derive from perceptions about the economic and demographic 

indicators for a market. For many desired destinations, there is marginal demand and viability 

leading to point-to-point routes only being viable by concentrating demand, usually via 

London. However, such diffusion can be countered by successful hub and spoke operations 

                                                      
5
 Cardiff Airport data paper slide 14 

6
 Oxera 2010 DfT Connectivity report 

7
 Cardiff Airport data paper slide 4 

Tudalen 4



 

such as KLM’s through Amsterdam and Flybe/Air France through Paris. It would also be 

advantageous to develop a range of hub opportunities particularly New York and a Middle 

Eastern hub such as Dubai. However, these will require support if the airline’s perceptions of 

the risks associated with operating are to be overcome. These potential hub operations 

should be priorities in any overarching connectivity policy. Furthermore, it is well known that 

new routes can be unprofitable during the first few years of operation, and this again 

increases risk levels. If an airline cites such risks as being beyond their normal investment 

criteria, then the risk level must be ameliorated by some form of support package.  

The provision of financial support by public authorities is governed by European Commission 

state aid rules and as such requires careful evaluation and procedural rigour. The quantum 

required by an airline is often beyond the reach of a regional airport alone as the scale of 

funding can reach several million pounds for any significant base or long haul route. 

Therefore, every opportunity for support must be pursued through the appropriate 

Government and European Commission channels.  

There is also a need for a task force approach to support aviation with multi-departmental 

and agency participation, along with other business interests including the chamber of 

commerce and other interested partners. Such a model has been used successfully with 

Barcelona Airport, for example, within a comprehensive policy framework.  

The European Commission “open skies” approach means that competition for airline 

commitment is not simply confined within UK markets but is Europe-wide, and worldwide for 

long haul services. 

Given the open and contestable nature of UK aviation, it is clear from discussions with the 

majority of airlines that they perceive that Cardiff Airport’s market is neither distinctive nor 

attractive enough to develop route networks at this time. Therefore, there is a need to create 

opportunity through differentiation and distinction backed by a unity between stakeholders 

and comprehensive – including Government - support. Whilst this can be achieved through 

targeted marketing support, another significant opportunity is the remission of Air Passenger 

Duty (APD). This is now a major constraint on aviation demand generally and has been the 

subject of high level discussions between airlines and airports.8 In very recent discussions 

between Cardiff Airport and a leading low cost airline, they stated that unless APD was 

reduced, remitted or paid by the airport they would not be expanding services in the UK. 

                                                      
8
 AOA Press release 6/12/1011 

Tudalen 5



 

If powers to levy or remit APD could be devolved to Wales then it could be used in such a 

way to reduce the cost of flying to consumers, thus stimulating demand and therefore 

stimulating favourable airline interest. This has already been used by the Northern Ireland 

Executive to remit APD on the Belfast – New York service, a route which had been under 

threat of closure. Whilst this is scheduled to be examined by the Silk Committee, the 

precedent set by Northern Ireland, or something similar, should be adopted rapidly in Wales. 

The development of support for international connectivity would also be greatly aided by a 

strong policy focus, clear priorities and agreement on targets, including Germany, the USA 

and the Middle East. This is discussed in greater detail in the next section. 

There is a perception amongst some observers that improved access and facilities at the 

airport will, of itself, improve connectivity and growth.  This is a misconception: it is a strong 

route network and attractive prices that ultimately enables an airport to develop and grow, 

with all the benefits that this brings. Until such time as activity levels increase through the 

attraction of airlines to the airport with the appropriate support, the priority for investment 

must be on the safety and security of passengers.  The latest multi-million pound investment 

in new radar technology and x-ray equipment by Cardiff Airport are good examples of this, 

always recognising the importance of a positive passenger experience for the success of the 

airport.  Therefore, the focus has been, and will continue to be, on air service development in 

order to generate the activity levels required.  

 

How effectively do Welsh Government policies support the development of major 

Welsh ports and airports? 

Cardiff Airport has been working closely with the Welsh Government to find ways to co-

operate in developing opportunities for Cardiff Airport. A positive working relationship has 

also allowed, for example, the logical extension of the St. Athan Enterprise Zone to include 

Cardiff Airport. However, there are still opportunities to improve delivery of proactive and 

reactive support; route development, in particular, remains an area of opportunity, 

consideration and prioritisation. At the same time, other specific areas must also be 

addressed.  For example, the Transport Strategy stated that “enhancing international 

connectivity” is one of five key policy areas, but the document has very few outcomes, no 

programmes and no targets. Indeed, the key actions are around better east-west access 

(which encourages leakage to airports outside Wales as a consequence) and improved 

access to Cardiff Airport, neither of which tackles the key inhibitor to improved international 

Tudalen 6



 

connectivity (attracting airlines and developing network strength). There is a need for 

stronger policy emphasis on developing international connectivity and acknowledging the 

methods needed to achieve this objective, along with the need to link this policy with its 

ultimate objective in contributing to economic development for the region. 

If the international connectivity policy is to be strengthened, there is a need for either a single 

authority to manage Wales’s international work, or a task force combining resources to 

create synergies and economies of scope and scale. Whenever possible, investment and 

connectivity must be linked together, as indicated earlier.  This will also assist in dealing with 

the UK Government on areas of airports policy and other reserved matters. There is need for 

effective engagement with the UK Government particularly on APD and state aid issues. 

Cardiff Airport already participates within an agenda to promote Cardiff and the region 

because it believes the primary long term driver of the airport business is a coherent strategy 

to increase consumer and investor demand for Cardiff. Cardiff Airport is one of only 5 

strategic private sector investors in Cardiff & Co and values this format. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 7



 

3. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

v Cardiff Airport is widely agreed to be of economic importance to Wales. 

v The development of independent and objective data related to passenger and cargo 

forecasts, as well as economic benefits associated with aviation overall, would 

support policy and strategy development. 

v To achieve an optimised network, airline risks must be mitigated by targeted, tangible 

support linked directly to national economic policies and priorities. 

v Cardiff Airport continues to actively engage with airlines with a view to significantly 

expanding the route network.  The scale of support required is beyond that which the 

airport alone can reasonably provide, and requires the adoption of Government 

international connectivity policy linked to the broader economic development policy. 

v Every option for the delivery of appropriate support must be pursued.  

v The infrastructure supporting Cardiff Airport – including the airfield, terminal and 

access routes - is not currently a critical inhibitor to route development, nor will 

infrastructure expansion alone lead to favourable route development decisions.  

v The effective delivery of new or expanded services could be enhanced by improving 

communications and coordination between airport stakeholders within Wales; through 

the establishment of either a new single authority or a multi-agency task force 

providing synergies, support and better use of resources to achieve commonly 

shared outcomes; and, through joint marketing and promotional efforts supported by 

Government policy and investment programmes.  

Tudalen 8



E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 a

n
d

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

    

F
u

tu
re

 o
f 

W
e

ls
h

 p
o

rt
s

 a
n

d
 a

ir
p

o
rt

s
   

D
a
ta

 p
a
p
e
r 

o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

A
ir
p
o
rt

 

Tudalen 9



C
o
n
te

n
t 

1
. 
  

R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 G

D
P

 a
n

d
 a

ir
 t
ra

v
e

l 
 

2
. 

 
U

K
 D

fT
 U

n
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

e
d
 A

ir
 T

ra
ff
ic

 F
o
re

c
a
s
ts

 

3
. 
  

U
K

 D
fT

 U
K

 a
ir
p

o
rt

s
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 
2

0
2

0
 v

s
. 
2

0
1

0
 

4
. 

 
U

K
 a

ir
p

o
rt

s
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 2
0

1
1

 v
s
. 
2

0
1

0
 

5
. 

 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

6
. 

 
C

a
tc

h
m

e
n
t 
a
re

a
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
 C

a
rd

if
f 
 v

s
. 
B

ri
s
to

l 

7
. 

 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 b
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
y
p

e
 2

0
1

1
 v

s
. 
2

0
1

0
 

8
. 

 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 k
e

y
 s

e
c
to

rs
 2

0
1

1
 

9
. 

 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 s
e

a
s
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 2
0

1
1

 v
s
. 
2

0
1

0
 

1
0

. 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p
o
rt

 T
o
p
 1

0
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1
1

 

1
1

 /
 1

2
. 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 r
o

u
te

s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 2

0
1

2
 

 

Tudalen 10



C
o
n
te

n
t 
(c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
d

) 
 

1
3

. 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
0

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 

1
4

. 
S

o
u
th

 W
a
le

s
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 o

th
e
r 

a
ir
p
o
rt

s
 %

 s
p
lit

 

1
5

. 
S

o
u

th
 W

a
le

s
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 o

th
e

r 
a

ir
p

o
rt

s
 -

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 f
ly

  

1
6

. 
P

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

c
h

o
ic

e
 f
a

c
to

rs
 

1
7

. 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 s
u

rf
a

c
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

1
8

. 
C

A
A

 s
u
rv

e
y
 d

e
s
ir

e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p
o
rt

 

1
9

. 
 

C
a

rd
if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

  
b

m
ib

a
b

y
 r

o
u

te
 h

is
to

ry
 

2
0

. 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 a
ir
lin

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
s
h

a
re

s
 2

0
1

1
 v

s
 2

0
1

0
 

2
1

. 
U

K
 c

a
rg

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d

ri
v
e

rs
 

2
2

. 
U

K
 c

a
rg

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 u

p
lif

te
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
y
p
e

 

2
3

. 
U

K
 c

a
rg

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 
fl
o

w
n

 c
a

rg
o

 b
y
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 

 

Tudalen 11



1
. 

R
e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 G

D
P

 a
n

d
 a

ir
 t
ra

v
e

l 
 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 t
re

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 G

D
P

 a
n
d
 g

ro
w

th
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

G
D

P
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
n
s
it
y
 t

o
 t
ra

v
e

l.
 I

t 
a
ls

o
 s

h
o
w

s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 l
o
w

 c
o
s
t 

“b
o
o
m

” 
w

a
s
 a

 s
u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 e

ff
e
c
t 

m
o
v
in

g
 t
ra

ff
ic

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
r 

ty
p
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

m
a
s
k
s
 a

 s
lo

w
in

g
 o

f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
g
ro

w
th

 r
a
te

s
 

            

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 
L

e
ig

h
F

is
h

e
r 

U
K

 

A
ir
p

o
rt

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
) 

Tudalen 12



2
. 

U
K

 D
fT

 U
n
c
o
n

s
tr

a
in

e
d

 A
ir
 T

ra
ff

ic
 F

o
re

c
a

s
ts

 

T
h
e
s
e
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

D
fT

 f
o
re

c
a
s
ts

 f
o
r 

to
ta

l 
a
ir

 t
ra

v
e
l 
d
e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

 h
o
w

 p
e
s
s
im

is
m

 

b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 t
h

e
 t

w
in

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

re
c
e
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 A

P
D

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f

u
tu

re
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
m

a
rk

e
t 

s
iz

e
  

            

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 
L

e
ig

h
F

is
h
e

r 
U

K
 

A
ir
p

o
rt

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
) 

 

Tudalen 13



3
. 

U
K

 A
ir
p

o
rt

s
 p

a
s
s
e

n
g
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
ts

 

•
T

h
e
 t
a
b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

D
fT

 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 m

a
jo

r 
U

K
 a

ir
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

 

•
N

o
tw

it
h

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 

c
ru

n
c
h

 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

it
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 

g
a
in

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

a
 v

e
ry

 

fe
w

 m
a
tu

re
 a

ir
p
o
rt

s
. 

  

 

•
T

h
e
 D

fT
 m

o
d
e
l 
u

s
e
s
 a

 s
o
p
h
is

ti
c
a
te

d
 

e
c
o
n

o
m

e
tr

ic
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
. 

It
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

C
a
rd

if
f 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

g
ro

w
 i
f 
g
ro

w
th

 i
s
 o

rg
a
n
ic

 

a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

 s
o

c
io

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
a
lt
e
re

d
. 

 

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 
D

fT
 2

0
1

1
) 

 

A
ir

p
o

rt
 

2
0

1
0

  
(m

il
li

o
n

 

p
a

x
/ 
a

n
n

u
m

) 

2
0

2
0

  
(m

il
li

o
n

 

p
a

x
/ 
a

n
n

u
m

) 

C
h

a
n

g
e

%
 

H
e

a
th

ro
w

 
6

5
 

8
0

 
+

2
3

 

G
a

tw
ic

k
 

3
0

 
3

5
 

+
1

7
 

M
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r 
2

0
 

2
5

 
+

2
5

 

S
ta

n
s
te

d
 

2
0

 
2

5
 

+
2

5
 

L
u

to
n

 
9

 
1

2
 

+
3

3
 

E
d

in
b

u
rg

h
 

9
 

1
3

 
+

4
4

 

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 
9

 
2

0
 

+
1

2
2

 

G
la

s
g

o
w

 
7

 
7

 
- 

B
ri

s
to

l 
6

 
6

 
- 

L
iv

e
rp

o
o

l
 

5
 

5
 

- 

E
a

s
t 
M

id
la

n
d

s
 

4
 

3
 

-2
5

 

B
e

lf
a

s
t 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l  
4

 
6

 
+

5
0

 

L
e

e
d

s
 B

ra
d

fo
rd

 
3

 
3

 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

2
 

2
 

- 

C
a

rd
if
f 
 

1
 

1
 

- 

D
o

n
c
a

s
te

r 
<

1
 

1
 

- 

E
x
e

te
r 

<
1

 
1

 
- 

B
o

u
rn

e
m

o
u

th
 

<
1

 
<

1
 

- 

Tudalen 14



4
. 

U
K

 a
ir
p

o
rt

s
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

n
u

m
b
e

rs
 2

0
1
1

 v
s
 2

0
1
0
 

•
T

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 

E
a
s
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 d

o
m

in
a
te

 a
ir

 

tr
a
n
s
p
o

rt
  

 

•
M

o
s
t 

U
K

 r
e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
ir

p
o
rt

s
 l
o
s
t 

s
h

a
re

 a
n

d
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n

d
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 

o
th

e
rs

 l
o
s
t 
s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
m

a
lle

r 
a
ir

p
o
rt

s
 

to
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 c

a
u
s
e
 

b
y
 a

ir
lin

e
 o

r 
a
ir

c
ra

ft
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 

 

•
E

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 g
ro

w
th

 w
a
s
 m

o
d
e
s
t 

d
u
e
 t
o
 A

P
D

 a
n
d
 l
o
w

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

g
ro

w
th

 
(S

o
u

rc
e

 C
A

A
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
) 

 

A
ir

p
o

rt
 

2
0
1
1
  

P
a
s
s
e
n

g
e

rs
 

(0
0
0
) 

2
0
1
0
 p

a
s
s
e
n

g
e

rs
 

(0
0
0
) 

%
 c

h
a

n
g

e
  

%
 o

f 
U

K
 a

ir
 t

ra
v
e
l 

2
0
1
1
 (

2
0
1
0
) 

H
e
a
th

ro
w

 
6
9
,3

9
1
 

6
5
,7

4
5
 

+
6
 

3
1
.7

 (
3
1
.2

) 

G
a
tw

ic
k
 

3
3
,6

4
4
 

3
1
,3

4
2
 

+
7
 

1
5
.4

 (
1
4
.9

) 

M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
1
8
,8

0
4
 

1
7
,6

6
3
 

+
2
 

8
.6

  
 (

8
.4

) 

S
ta

n
s
te

d
 

1
8
,0

4
7
 

1
8
,5

6
2
 

-3
 

8
.2

  
 (

8
.8

) 

L
u
to

n
 

9
,5

1
0
 

8
,7

3
4
 

+
9
 

4
.3

  
(4

.1
) 

E
d
in

b
u
rg

h
 

9
,3

8
4
 

8
,5

9
4
 

+
9
 

4
.3

  
(4

.1
) 

B
ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 
8
,6

0
8
 

8
,6

5
4
 

-1
 

3
.9

  
(4

.1
) 

G
la

s
g
o
w

 
6
,8

5
8
 

6
,5

2
2
 

+
5
 

3
.1

  
(3

.1
) 

B
ri
s
to

l 
5
,7

6
8
 

5
,7

2
3
 

+
1
 

2
.6

  
(2

.7
) 

L
iv

e
rp

o
o
l 
 

5
,2

4
7
 

5
,0

0
8
 

+
5
 

2
.4

  
(2

.4
) 

N
e
w

c
a
s
tl
e

 
4
,3

3
6
 

4
,3

4
6
 

- 
2
.0

  
(2

.1
) 

E
a
s
t 
M

id
la

n
d
s
 

4
,2

0
8
 

4
,1

1
1
 

+
2
 

1
.9

  
(2

.0
) 

B
e
lf
a
s
t 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
 

4
,1

0
2
 

4
,0

1
1
 

+
2
 

1
.9

 (
1
.9

) 

L
e
e
d
s
 B

ra
d
fo

rd
 

2
,6

6
7
 

2
,7

2
4
 

-2
 

1
.2

 (
1
.3

) 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

1
,7

6
2
 

1
,7

3
4
 

+
2
 

0
.8

 (
0
.8

) 

P
re

s
tw

ic
k
 

1
,2

9
6
 

1
,6

6
0
 

-2
2
 

0
.6

 (
0
.8

) 

C
a
rd

if
f 

 
1
,2

0
8
 

1
,3

9
8
 

-1
4
 

0
.6

 (
0
.7

) 

D
o
n
c
a
s
te

r 
8
2
2
 

8
7
6
 

-6
 

0
.4

 (
0
.4

) 

E
x
e
te

r 
7
0
9
 

7
3
7
 

-4
 

0
.3

 (
0
.3

) 

B
o
u
rn

e
m

o
u
th

 
6
1
3
 

7
5
0
 

-1
8
 

0
.3

 (
0
.4

) 

A
ll 

U
K

 
2
1
9
,0

1
0
 

2
1
0
,6

5
6
 

+
4
 

Tudalen 15



5
. 

C
a

rd
if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

•
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p
o
rt

 2
4
 h

o
u
r 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

 •
IA

T
A

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
r:

 C
W

L
 

 •
IC

A
O

 I
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
r:

 E
G

F
F

 

 •
R

u
n

w
a

y
 L

e
n

g
th

: 
2

3
5
4
m

 (
c
a

t 
1
 I

L
S

)1
7
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 

a
ir
c
ra

ft
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
ta

n
d
s
 

 •
3
 a

ir
b
ri
d
g
e
s
 

 •
C

a
rd

if
f 

h
a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

u
n
u
s
e
d
 t

e
rm

in
a

l 
c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 n
o
 

s
lo

t 
c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

t 
a
n
y
 t

im
e

 

 •
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

re
c
o
rd

, 
C

W
L
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

n
o
m

in
a

te
d
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
 a

ir
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

B
A

 L
o
n

g
 H

a
u
l 
fl
e

e
t 

Tudalen 16



6
. 

C
a

tc
h
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a

: 
c
o

m
p
a

ri
s
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 C
a
rd

if
f 

a
n
d
 B

ri
s
to

l 

•
W

a
le

s
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 U

K
’s

 l
o
w

e
s
t 

G
D

P
 (

G
V

A
) 

v
a
lu

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 i
s
 a

 

k
e
y
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n
t 

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e
n
s
it
y
 

to
 t

ra
v
e
l 
(s

e
e
 s

lid
e
 1

) 
a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 u
s
e
d
 b

y
 

a
ir
lin

e
s
 i
n

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 r

o
u

te
s
. 

 

•
T

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
o
u

n
d
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
 S

o
u

th
 

W
a
le

s
 w

it
h
 B

ri
s
to

l 
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

la
rg

e
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

ri
s
to

l 

c
a

tc
h

m
e

n
t 

a
re

a
 

 •
T

h
e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 

a
ir

lin
e
s
 i
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
a
rk

e
ts

 t
h
e
y
 w

is
h
 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 

 

(S
o

u
rc

e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
) 

  

C
a
tc

h
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

 
C

a
rd

if
f 

A
ir

p
o

rt
 

B
ri

s
to

l 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 

P
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 6
0

 

M
in

u
te

 d
ri
v
e
 r

a
d
iu

s
 (

2
0
0
7
) 

 A
v
g
 G

D
P

 p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 (

2
0
0
9
) 

C
ir

c
a
 1

.8
 M

il
li
o

n
 

 

£
1
5
,4

1
8
 

 

C
ir

c
a
 3

.4
 

M
il
li
o

n
 (

+
8
9
%

) 

£
1
9
,0

6
3
 (

+
2
4
%

) 

 

Tudalen 17



7
. 

P
a
s
s
e

n
g
e

rs
 a

t 
C

a
rd

if
f 

A
ir
p

o
rt

 b
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 T

y
p
e
 1

9
9
7
 -

 2
0
1
1
 

•
T

h
is

 c
h
a
rt

 s
h
o
w

s
 

th
e
 v

o
la

ti
lit

y
 o

f 

C
a
rd

if
f’
s
 a

ir
lin

e
 m

ix
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 p

e
a
k
 o

f 
2
0
0
7
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 

th
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
, 

le
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

tt
ri
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 b
m

ib
a
b
y
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
rt

e
r 

 •
U

n
lik

e
 t
h
e
 d

ip
 i
n
 

2
0
0
2
 w

h
e
n
 B

A
 l
e
ft
, 

it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

 

 

Tudalen 18



8
. 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n
 k

e
y
 s

e
c
to

rs
 2

0
1
1
 a

t 
C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p
o
rt

 

•
T

h
is

 s
lid

e
 s

h
o
w

s
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

h
e

a
d

lin
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 i
n

 

2
0
1
1
 i
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
b
m

ib
a
b
y
 l
o
w

 c
o
s
t 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
c
h
a
rt

e
r 

 

 

•
T

h
e

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

Z
u
ri
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 

th
a
t 

C
a
rd

if
f 

re
m

a
in

s
 r

o
b
u
s
t 

in
 

th
e
 k

e
y
 r

o
u
te

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

Tudalen 19



9
. 

C
a
rd

if
f 

A
ir
p

o
rt

 S
e
a

s
o
n

a
l 
P

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

P
a

s
s
e

n
g
e
rs

 

•
T

h
e
 c

h
a
rt

 b
e
lo

w
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

s
e

a
s
o

n
a

lit
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 m

o
s
t 

re
g

io
n

a
l 
a

ir
p

o
rt

s
 

Tudalen 20



1
0

. 
T

o
p
 T

e
n
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1
1

 

•
A

m
s
te

rd
a
m

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 t
h
e
 

b
u
s
ie

s
t 
ro

u
te

 f
ro

m
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 o

n
e
 w

it
h
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

 •
E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 
tw

o
 

w
a
y
 t

ra
ff
ic

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

le
is

u
re

 t
ra

ff
ic

s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
u
e
 

to
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

 d
o
u
b
le

 A
P

D
 o

f 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 l
o
s
t 

 

•
D

e
s
p
it
e
 M

a
la

g
a
 b

e
in

g
 5

th
 

b
u

s
ie

s
t 
ro

u
te

 a
ir
lin

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
lu

c
ta

n
t 

to
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 l
o
s
t 

b
m

ib
a
b
y
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

 

Tudalen 21



1
1

. 
2
0

1
2
 r

o
u

te
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 f
ro

m
 C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

) 
 

Tudalen 22



1
1

. 
2
0

1
2
 r

o
u

te
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 f
ro

m
 C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

 (
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
) 

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

) 
 

Tudalen 23



1
3

. 
2

0
1
0
 P

a
s
s
e

n
g
e
r 

T
ra

ff
ic

 p
ro

fi
le

: 
jo

u
rn

e
y
 t
y
p
e
, 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 &

 o
ri
g
in

 

•
T

h
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 C

a
rd

if
f’
s
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

. 
It

 s
h

o
w

s
 

2
8

%
 o

f 
u

s
e

rs
 a

t 
C

a
rd

if
f 
a

re
 t
ra

v
e

lli
n

g
 f
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

w
it
h

 7
2

%
 t
ra

v
e

lli
n

g
 f
o

r 
le

is
u

re
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

re
g

io
n

a
l 
a

ir
p

o
rt

s
. 
T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 f
ly

in
g

 i
s
 o

u
t 
o

f 
W

a
le

s
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 i
n

b
o

u
n
d

 

fl
o

w
s
 o

n
 A

e
r 

L
in

g
u
s
, 
F

ly
b

e
, 
H

e
lv

e
ti
c
 a

n
d

 K
L

M
 

 

•
It

 c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 t
h

a
t 
o

n
ly

 1
8

%
 o

f 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

 a
re

 

fl
y
in

g
 t
o
 /
 f
ro

m
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 a

 m
a
rk

e
t 
w

h
ic

h
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
a

v
ily

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 d

o
u

b
le

 A
P

D
. 

 

 

•
O

f 
th

o
s
e

 u
s
in

g
 C

a
rd

if
f 
7

7
%

 o
f 
th

e
m

 a
re

 W
e

ls
h

 

o
ri
g

in
a

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 2
3

%
 f
ro

m
 o

u
ts

id
e

 W
a

le
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

w
h

o
le

 y
e

a
r.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 i
s
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 b

y
 c

h
a

rt
e

r 

a
n

d
 l
o

w
 c

o
s
t 
le

is
u

re
 f
ly

in
g

. 
In

 w
in

te
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 

n
o

n
 W

e
ls

h
 u

s
e

rs
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
s
 h

ig
h

 a
s
 6

0
%

  
 

 

(S
o

u
rc

e
 C

A
A

 s
u

rv
e
y
s
) 

 

ty
p
e
, 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 &

 o
ri
g

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
2

8
%

L
e

is
u

re
7

2
%

F
o

re
ig

n
2

3
%

W
e

ls
h

7
7

%

b
o
u
n
d

 

a
re

 

h
ic

h
 

e

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l
8

2
%

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
1

8
%

Tudalen 24



1
4

. 
P

a
s
s
e

n
g
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 S
o
u

th
 W

a
le

s
 u

s
in

g
 o

th
e
r 

a
ir
p
o

rt
s
  

 

•
1
 i
n

 3
 p

a
s
s
e
n

g
e
rs

 t
ra

v
e
lle

d
 t
o
 a

 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 s

e
rv

e
d

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 f

ro
m

 C
a

rd
if
f 

 

•
4

5
%

 t
ra

v
e
lle

d
 t
o
 a

 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 

K
L
M

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 v
ia

 A
M

S
 w

it
h
 a

 o
n
e
 s

to
p
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
  

 

•
6
4
%

 t
ra

v
e

lle
d

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 3

 h
o

u
rs

 b
y
 c

a
r 

to
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

a
ir

p
o
rt

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
is

 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 

 

•
C

a
rd

if
f's

 v
is

io
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 t

o
 r

e
c
la

im
 a

s
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 B

y
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
ir

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
ir

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

c
a

rb
o

n
 s

ig
n

a
tu

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 
C

A
A

 s
u

rv
e
y
s
) 

 

B
R

S
, 7

8
1

,4
8

9

L
H

R
, 7

3
7

,1
5

6

L
G

W
, 4

1
3

,4
6

8

S
T

N
, 9

5
,0

1
6LT

N
, 6

0
,4

4
9

M
A

N
, 9

2
,4

4
4

E
X

T,
 6

,3
0

1

Tudalen 25



1
5
. 

2
0
1

0
 C

A
A

 s
u

rv
e
y
 o

f 
le

a
k
a
g
e
 t

o
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 

•
T

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

tr
a
v
e
lle

d
 f
ro

m
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 t
o

 t
h
e
s
e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

 b
y
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
k
; 

w
h

o
 o

ri
g

in
a

te
d

 t
h

e
ir
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
 f

ro
m

 S
o

u
th

 W
a

le
s
 

(w
it
h
in

 6
0
 m

in
 d

ri
v
e
 r

a
d
iu

s
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

A
ir

p
o
rt

) 
 

               

(S
o

u
rc

e
: 
C

A
A

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
) 

Tudalen 26



1
6

. 
P

a
s
s
e

n
g
e

r 
c
h

o
ic

e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 

•
R

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

n
o
t 

fl
y
in

g
 f

ro
m

 C
a
rd

if
f 

- 
th

e
 

b
ig

g
e
s
t 
in

h
ib

it
o
rs

 

 

•
T

h
e
s
e
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 f

a
c
to

r 
th

a
t 

a
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 t
ic

k
e
t 
p
ri
c
e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 
is

 o
ft
e
n
 a

 m
is

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 b
e
in

g
 s

e
rv

e
d
, 

a
lb

e
it
 w

it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
fl
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 f

a
re

s
 t

h
a
n
 

c
o

m
p

e
ti
n

g
 o

ff
e

rs
, 

 •
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

ir
lin

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

 h
o
w

 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

it
 i
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
o
u
te

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
if
 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

v
e
re

d
. 

 

•
It
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
th

a
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
o
n
ly

 3
%

 o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 

n
o
t 

c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
in

 d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 c

h
o
ic

e
. 

 

4
0
%

1
7
%

1
5
%

8
%

7
%

6
%

3
%

3
%

1
%

C
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
d

e
s
ti
n
a

tio
n
s

C
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
fl

ig
h

ts

T
ic

k
e

t p
ri

c
e

O
th

e
r

A
ir

li
n

e
 b

ra
n

d
 c

h
o

ic
e

T
im

e
 o

f 
fl

ig
h
ts

C
o

s
t o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 / 
tr

a
v
e

l t
o

 
a

ir
p

o
rt

A
c
c
e

s
s
ib

il
ity

 o
f 
th

e
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 

R
a

n
g

e
 &

 q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 
s
h

o
p

s
, 

c
a

te
ri

n
g

 &
 o

th
e

r 
fa

c
il
iti

e
s

Tudalen 27



1
7

. 
S

u
rf

a
c
e

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 C

a
rd

if
f 

A
ir
p
o
rt

 

•
P

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 a

ir
p
o
rt

 b
y
 c

a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
u
rp

ri
s
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 o

ri
g
in

a
ti
n
g
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

o
o
r 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 

p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
. 

 
(S

o
u

rc
e
: 
C

A
A

 s
u

rv
e

y
) 

•
T

h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 a

re
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
re

b
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 m

a
d
e
 p

e
r 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

 •
E

v
e
n
 w

it
h
 a

 m
a
tu

re
 a

n
d
 f

re
q
u
e
n
t 

 p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
t 
is

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

y
 

p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 2

0
%

 
B

u
s

/C
o

a
c

h
 

9
%

 
H

ir
e

 C
a

r 
3
%

 
T

ra
in

 
2
%

 

C
a

r 
7
3
%

 

T
a
x
i/
M

in
ic

a
b

 
1
3
%

 

7
1
0
,0

9
2
 

4
8
7
,2

1
7
 

1
8
2
,0

4
4

 

0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

4
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

6
0

0
,0

0
0

7
0

0
,0

0
0

8
0

0
,0

0
0

D
ri

v
e

n
 A

w
a
y

A
ir

p
o

rt
 N

C
P

O
ff
s
it
e
 C

a
rp

a
rk

N
C

P
 W

e
b

s
it

e
 

4
1
%

 

O
th

e
r 

3
6
%

 

A
ir

p
o

rt
 

W
e

b
s

it
e

 
1
7
%

 

P
h

o
n

e
 

6
%

 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 b

o
o

k
e
d

?
 

Tudalen 28



1
8
. 

D
e
s
ir
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 r
o
u

te
s
 

•
T

e
rm

in
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
•

N
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

5
8

%
 

•
M

o
re

 s
h

o
p

s
 

 
 

5
%

 

•
L

o
c
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

 
3

%
 

•
R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

 
3

%
 

•
S

m
o

k
in

g
 a

re
a

 
 

 
3

%
 

•
P

a
rk

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

 
2

%
 

•
C

h
e

m
is

t 
 

 
2

%
 

•
C

h
ild

re
n

s
 p

la
y
 a

re
a

 
 

2
%

 

•
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

m
e

n
ts

 
 

2
%

 

•
In

te
rn

e
t 
fa

c
ili

ty
 

 
 

2
%

 

•
T

o
ile

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

 
1

%
 

•
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

h
e

c
k
-i
n

 
 

1
%

 

•
C

h
e

a
p

e
r 

re
fr

e
s
h

m
e
n

ts
 

 
1

%
 

•
A

ir
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

 
 

1
%

 

•
S

p
e

c
ta

to
rs

 g
a

lle
ry

 
 

1
%

 

•
T

V
 l
o

u
n

g
e

 
 

 
1

%
 

•
T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

C
a
rd

if
f’
s
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 b
e
lie

v
e
 t
h
a
t 

n
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

 
(S

o
u

rc
e
: 
C

A
A

 s
u

rv
e
y
s
) 

•
N

e
w

 d
e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
N

e
w

 Y
o

rk
 

•
S

y
d

n
e

y
 

 

•
R

o
m

e
 

•
F

lo
ri
d

a
 u

n
s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 

•
B

o
d

ru
m

 
 

•
It

a
ly

 u
n

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 

•
B

ri
d

g
e

to
w

n
, 
B

a
rb

a
d

o
s
 

•
A

u
c
k
la

n
d
 

•
S

a
n

 F
ra

n
c
is

c
o

 

•
D

u
b

a
i

•
L

o
s
 A

n
g
e

le
s
 

•
L

a
s
 V

e
g
a

s
 

•
B

o
s
to

n
 

•
E

g
y
p

t 
u

n
s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
  

•
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n
 

•
K

ra
k
o

w
 

 

•
T

h
is

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
 

Tudalen 29



1
9

. 
B

m
ib

a
b
y
 r

o
u
te

 h
is

to
ry

 

•
T

h
is

 t
a
b
le

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 

th
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 

b
m

ib
a

b
y
’s

  
fa

ilu
re

 t
o

 

m
a
in

ta
in

 f
le

e
t 
s
iz

e
 a

t 

C
a
rd

if
f 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
llo

w
 

ro
u
te

s
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 f

re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 m

a
tu

re
 

•
A

ll 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

e
re

 

u
n

ila
te

ra
l 
b

y
 t

h
e

 a
ir
lin

e
 a

n
d

 

w
e
re

 u
n
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

a
ir

p
o
rt

 c
h
a
rg

in
g

 r
e
g
im

e
 

•
T

h
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 s

h
o
w

s
 h

o
w

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
 a

ir
p

o
rt

 i
s
 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

c
re

d
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

it
s
 a

ir
lin

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

  
 (

S
o

u
rc

e
 C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

) 

 

  
2
0
0
2
 

2
0
0
3
 

2
0
0
4
 

2
0
0
5
 

2
0
0
6
 

2
0
0
7
 

2
0
0
8
 

2
0
0
9
 

2
0
1
0
 

D
e

ta
il
s 

A
lic

a
n
te

 
1
0
,1

2
7
 

7
0
,8

7
9
 

7
7
,9

3
6
 

8
3
,3

4
7
 

9
5
,3

6
8
 

8
6
,6

3
5
 

8
4
,3

4
6
 

7
1
,1

7
0
 

6
4
,4

6
1
 

S
ta

rt
e

d
 O

ct
 2

0
0

2
 

A
m

s
te

rd
a
m

 
 

  
  

  
5
0
,5

9
2
 

4
8
,1

4
9
 

4
5
,1

7
1
 

6
,0

1
9
 

  
S

ta
rt

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
6

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
9

 

B
e
lf
a
s
t 

9
,5

9
9
 

6
6
,0

4
0
 

5
0
,6

1
5
 

7
,4

9
1
 

5
7
,2

3
6
 

9
3
,2

7
4
 

5
2
,1

7
0
 

4
8
,7

8
8
 

7
,1

4
6
 

S
ta

rt
e

d
 O

ct
 2

0
0

2
 

B
e
rg

a
m

o
 

3
5
8
 

2
9
,4

8
7
 

2
,3

7
2
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
ta

rt
e

d
 D

e
c 

0
2

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
4

 

C
o
rk

 
 

3
,2

0
8
 

9
,4

7
7
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
ta

rt
e

d
 O

ct
 0

3
, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
4

 

E
d
in

b
u
rg

h
 

1
6
,9

0
0
 1

2
3
,0

8
2
 1

5
0
,3

8
2
 1

5
1
,2

6
8
 1

5
5
,2

1
6
 1

5
3
,0

5
3
 1

2
5
,9

8
0
 1

1
0
,4

0
3
 5

1
,0

8
8

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 O
ct

 0
2

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 1
1

 

F
a
ro

 
4
,1

5
2
 

7
,1

2
2
 

1
8
,5

2
6
 

3
0
,2

4
3
 

3
3
,4

9
5
 

3
7
,4

5
7
 

3
9
,7

3
9
 

3
4
,0

5
9
 

S
ta

rt
e

d
 O

ct
 2

0
0

2
. 

G
e
n
e
v
a
 

1
,1

0
4
 

6
,0

3
1
 

5
,5

3
5
 

3
,7

4
6
 

6
,4

6
6
 

7
,3

6
5
 

1
3
,7

9
1
 

9
,7

3
8
 

6
,0

6
4
 

S
ta

rt
e

d
 D

e
c 

0
2

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 A
p

ri
l 
1

1
 

G
la

s
g
o
w

 
1
2
,5

0
7
 

9
0
,2

0
7
 

2
2
,2

6
9
 

1
0
7
 

8
2
,0

5
0
 

7
6
,9

1
5
 

5
5
,9

6
3
 

8
,1

8
0
 

  
S

ta
rt

e
d

 O
ct

 0
2

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 A
p

ri
l 

2
9

 

Ib
iz

a
 

5
6
 

3
,5

4
0
 

O
p

e
ra

te
d

 S
0

7
 &

 S
1

1
 

J
e
rs

e
y
 

4
,7

2
7
 

4
0
,7

3
5
 

1
2
,6

5
8
 

6
,2

1
4
 

6
,1

8
4
 

1
6
,0

7
5
 

1
6
,1

2
8
 

1
7
,9

8
0
 

1
5
,1

6
9

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 O
ct

 0
2

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 1
1

  

M
a
la

g
a
 

8
,1

7
0
 

6
9
,6

5
8
 

8
2
,4

8
8
 

8
4
,2

2
7
 

9
0
,5

4
7
 

9
0
,3

6
5
 

8
5
,1

8
5
 

8
3
,2

8
5
 

6
3
,0

0
7

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 O
ct

 2
0

0
2

,  

M
u
n
ic

h
 

 
1
8
,9

7
5
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,7

3
4

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
3

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 O
ct

 0
3

 

M
u
rc

ia
 

3
0
,1

1
9
 

3
1
,1

3
1
 

2
2
,2

9
6
 

2
0
,5

5
1

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
7

 

P
a
lm

a
 

4
6
,5

4
0
 

3
1
,8

0
0
 

4
8
,4

4
0
 

5
2
,1

2
3
 

5
6
,6

6
9
 

6
0
,4

6
9
 

5
2
,7

3
7
 

4
2
,8

4
4

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
3

 

P
a
ri
s
 

 
6
7
,2

7
3
 

7
1
,8

1
2
 

1
3
,4

9
5
 

  
  

  
  

  
S

ta
rt

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
3

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

r 
0

5
 

P
ra

g
u
e

 
 

7
,0

9
3
 

5
1
,7

0
1
 

5
2
,0

7
6
 

4
7
,6

7
9
 

1
5
,6

4
9
 

  
  

  
S

ta
rt

e
d

 O
ct

 0
3

, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 0
7

 

T
o

u
lo

u
s
e

 
 

6
,8

0
8
 

8
,0

6
1
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
ta

rt
e

d
 A

p
ri

l 
0

3
, 
e

n
d

e
d

 O
ct

 0
4

 

W
a
rs

a
w

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
2
0
,8

2
3
 

2
6
9
 

  
S

ta
rt

e
d

 F
e

b
 0

8
, 
e

n
d

e
d

 A
p

r 
0

9
 

B
a
rc

e
lo

n
a

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
1
1
,9

9
8
 

1
9
,6

4
3
 

  
S

ta
rt

e
d

 M
a

y
 0

8
, 
e

n
d

e
d

 O
ct

 0
9

 

G
d
a
n
s
k
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

2
,0

5
0
 

  
  

S
ta

rt
e

d
 A

p
ri

l 
0

8
, 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

y
 0

8
 

M
a
h
o
n
 

8
,1

9
6
 

9
,1

4
8
 

T
o

ta
l 

P
a
s
s
e
n

g
e

rs
 
6
7
,6

4
4
 6

5
3
,1

9
4
 5

7
7
,1

0
6
 4

6
8
,9

3
7
 6

7
3
,7

0
4
 7

1
1
,3

0
3
 6

4
2
,6

6
2
 4

9
8
,4

4
3
 3

1
6
,2

7
1

 1
4

 R
O

U
T

E
S

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L
Y

 D
R

O
P

P
E

D
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

r
o

w
th

 
 

8
6
6
%

 
-1

2
%

 
-1

9
%

 
4
4
%

 
6
%

 
-1

0
%

 
-2

2
%

 
-3

7
%

 

R
o

u
te

s
 

9
 

1
6
 

1
3
 

1
1
 

1
1
 

1
3
 

1
4
 

1
4
 

1
1
 

Tudalen 30



2
0

. 
A

ir
lin

e
 M

a
rk

e
t 
s
h
a
re

s
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

 

•
T

h
is

 s
lid

e
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

te
p
p
e
d
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 

b
m

ib
a
b
y
’s

  
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

t 

C
a

rd
if
f.

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

K
L

M
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

n
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rl
d

 
(S

o
u

rc
e
 C

a
rd

if
f 
A

ir
p

o
rt

) 

T
U

I 
2
6
%

 

F
ly

b
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
%

 

K
L
M

 
1
4
%

 

b
m

ib
a
b
y
 

1
4
%

 

T
h

o
m

a
s
 C

o
o
k
 

1
0
%

 

A
e
r 

A
ra

n
n
 

8
%

 

O
th

e
rs

 
7
%

 2
0
1
1
 

T
U

I 
2
3
%

 

F
ly

b
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
9
%

 

K
L
M

 
1
2
%

 

b
m

ib
a
b
y
 

2
4
%

 

T
h

o
m

a
s
 C

o
o
k
 

9
%

 

A
e
r 

A
ra

n
n
 

7
%

 

O
th

e
rs

 
6
%

 2
0
1
0
 

Tudalen 31



2
1

. 
C

a
rg

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d
ri
v
e
rs

 

•
T

h
is

 d
ia

g
ra

m
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 U

K
 D

fT
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
rg

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 

s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
 d

ri
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
ir

 c
a
rg

o
 

•
T

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
a
ir

c
ra

ft
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

a
ir

c
ra

ft
 t

y
p
e
 a

re
 a

 k
e
y
 i
n
h
ib

it
o
r 

o
f 

c
a
rg

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

C
a
rd

if
f 

•
T

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
a
ir

c
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 r

o
u
te

s
 a

re
 

d
e

tr
im

e
n

ta
l 
to

 c
a

rg
o

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 u

s
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rb

e
lly

 o
n
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

a
ir

c
ra

ft
. 

T
h
is

 

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 g

iv
e
n
, 
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

n
e
x
t,
 b

e
lly

h
o
ld

  
c
a
rr

ie
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

c
a
rg

o
 u

p
lif

t 

 
(S

o
u

rc
e
: 
D

fT
 S

te
e

r 
D

a
v
ie

s
 G

le
a

v
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
0

) 

Tudalen 32



2
2

. 
C

a
rg

o
 u

p
lif

t 
b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

y
p

e
 

•
T

h
is

 c
h
a
rt

 s
h
o
w

s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

c
a
rg

o
 i
s
 f
lo

w
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h

o
ld

s
 o

f 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

a
ir

c
ra

ft
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 w

id
e

-b
o
d
y
 

c
o

n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

n
o

rm
a

lly
 

fo
u
n
d
 a

t 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
a
ir

p
o
rt

s
. 

E
v
e
n
 i
f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

w
a
s
 t

o
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
re

 f
re

ig
h
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

th
is

 

is
 d

o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
fr

e
ig

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 b

e
lly

h
o
ld

 v
o
lu

m
e
s
. 

 

 •
 T

h
e
 f

a
s
t 

p
a
rc

e
ls

 m
a
rk

e
t 

is
 m

a
tu

re
 a

t 

p
re

s
e
n

t 
a
n
d
 d

o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 E

a
s
t 
M

id
la

n
d
s
 &

 

S
ta

n
s
te

d
 w

h
o
 e

n
jo

y
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
  

a
n
d
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
n
jo

y
e
d
 i
n
 

C
a
rd

if
f.
 T

N
T

 l
e
ft
 C

a
rd

if
f 

in
 2

0
0
8
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e

y
 w

e
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t
o

 c
a

p
tu

re
 v

ia
b

le
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 

tr
a
ff
ic

  
  

(S
o

u
rc

e
 D

fT
 S

te
e

r 
D

a
v
ie

s
 G

le
a

v
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
0

) 

 

Tudalen 33



2
3

. 
F

lo
w

n
 c

a
rg

o
 b

y
 A

ir
p
o

rt
 

•
T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 u
s
in

g
 C

A
A

 d
a
ta

, 
a
ls

o
 t
a
k
e
n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 U

K
 D

fT
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 c
a

rg
o

, 

d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 d

o
m

in
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

H
e
a
th

ro
w

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
n
g
 h

a
u
l,
 

w
id

e
b
o
d
y
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
 

 

•
 T

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

s
h
o
w

in
g
s
 o

f 

G
a

tw
ic

k
 a

n
d

 M
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r,
 d

e
s
p

it
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
o
c
u
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 

th
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 o

f 
p
e
n
e
tr

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

lo
w

n
 

c
a
rg

o
 m

a
rk

e
t.
  

 

•
T

h
e
 E

a
s
t 
M

id
la

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 S

ta
n

s
te

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 f

a
s
t 

p
a

rc
e

l 
h

u
b

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 m
a
tu

re
 w

it
h
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

(S
o

u
rc

e
 D

fT
 S

te
e

r 
D

a
v
ie

s
 G

le
a

v
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1

0
) 

 

Tudalen 34



 

Page 1 of 5 

 

Response to the Assembly for Wales Enterprise and Business 

Committee Inquiry into the Future of Welsh Ports and Airports 

 

1. About Flybe 

 

1.1 Flybe welcomes the opportunity to submit a response to the Assembly’s inquiry into the 

future of Welsh ports and airports. Headquartered in Exeter, Flybe is proudly and 

determinedly a regional airline and is both Europe’s largest regional airline and the UK’s 

number one domestic airline.  Employing around 3,300 staff, we currently operate 84 aircraft 

on 211 routes from 36 UK and 62 European airports (all routes on sale Jan ’12-Oct’12) in 18 

countries and carried more than 7 million passengers in 2011. CAA statistics show that, 

during 2011, Flybe was responsible for 120,383 air movements, nearly 13% of the total for the 

UK. This made us the third largest airline in terms of departures from UK airports, behind only 

British Airways and Easyjet. 

 

1.2 Flybe has established a comprehensive regional route network and our spread of airports 

is intended to offer customers a convenient point-to-point network operating from regional 

airports which are a preferable alternative to having to travel to more distant major hub 

airports. In addition, the domestic route network does not attempt to compete with surface 

transport where alternative road or rail options give journey times of three hours or less. As 

such, and because we offer three times more domestic routes than our nearest competitor, 

Flybe can legitimately claim to understand the needs of the UK’s regions better than any other 

airline. 

 

1.3 Since October 2008 Flybe has also operated a franchise arrangement with the Scottish 

airline Loganair, under which 16 Loganair aircraft fly using the Flybe brand across 28 routes, 

serving island communities such as the Shetland and Orkney Islands and other transport-

isolated areas. 

 

2. Flybe in Wales 

 

2.1 Flybe started operating a scheduled network of services from Cardiff airport in April 2007, 

following the acquisition of BA Connect, British Airways’ regional business. Initially the 

programme consisted of Belfast City and Paris CDG and then in March 2008, we introduced 

flights to Edinburgh, Glasgow, Jersey and Newcastle – all of which except Newcastle are still 

in operation.  

 

2.2 CAA passenger numbers for 2011 show Flybe as the biggest scheduled airline at Cardiff, 

as follows: 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 35



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Flybe – 220,805 

BMI Baby – 196,584 

KLM – 121, 674 

Aer Arran – 60,705 

 

2.3 Of those Flybe passengers, 41,677 flew to Paris CDG and of that number, some 11% 

(4,577) then connected on to other airports, confirming the importance of this route in 

accessing global destinations. For the record, the most popular destinations for those 

connecting passengers are: 

 

• Dubai 

• Tokyo 
• Rio de Janeiro  
• Seoul 

• Johannesburg 
• Doha 

• Hong Kong 
 

3. Regional Aviation 

 

3.1 Welsh Business and leisure travellers need reliable, regular and reasonably priced 

transport links to UK and international destinations. Passengers rely upon services to and 

from places such as Northern Ireland, Scotland and the Channel Islands; services that in 

many cases, cannot be replicated, either in terms of speed or comfort, by train, car or ferry. 

Increasingly, as can be seen from the figures above, this is also true for access to European 

cities such as Paris and Amsterdam. 

 

3.2 Regional aviation is a challenging business with many recent examples of failed operators 

both here in the UK and across Europe. This is in part due to the high risk and highly 

competitive nature of aviation and in part due to EU State Aid regulations being more 

stringently applied in relation to financial support of traditional flag carrier airlines. We would 

be happy to expand upon this at the evidence session.  

 

3.3 Surface access and public transport, both road and rail, needs to be improved to the 

overwhelming majority of the airports we serve and Cardiff is no different. For a best practice 

transport hub that connects rail, road and air, we would recommend the Committee examines 

Southampton airport. It has all the features that a 21
st
 century integrated cross-modal facility 

should have, with a train station a matter of 100 metres from the check-in hall and rapid 

access to both the M27 and the M3. Of note, Flybe’s post-code analysis of where our 

passengers commence their journey shows that increasing numbers are from South and 

Tudalen 36



 

Page 3 of 5 

West London, and are opting to travel from Southampton airport rather than the busier, slower 

alternative of Heathrow. 

 

3.4 The current state subsidy for the rail network, at £5.2 billion in 2009-10 (the last full year’s 

figures available), dwarfs anything that the aviation sector receives and gives lie to the 

aviation subsidy myth that unfortunately still pervades much commentary on this issue.  

 

3.5 Flybe understands and accepts that major regional transport infrastructure improvements 

such as those in relation to road and rail need Government pump priming funds to enable 

delivery. Aviation on the other hand, pays all its own infrastructure costs and all its own 

security costs. Because aviation does not receive any public subsidy, it is the individual 

airline’s responsibility to fund our own investment. In our case, Flybe has invested over $2bn 

in recent years in new generation aircraft and now has one of the youngest fleet in the world, 

with an average aircraft age of 4.4 years. Ultimately, we would hope to recoup those costs by 

means of increased efficiencies, lower servicing costs and less expenditure on fuel, however, 

encouragement through the tax system for such investment would be a sign that the 

government backs those airlines who dispose of ageing aircraft and replace with newer.  

 

4. Air Passenger Duty 

 

4.1 Air Passenger Duty is a barrier to economic growth. It is well documented that the UK has 

the highest aviation tax in the world – a seriously short-sighted policy for an island nation. As 

can be seen from the table below, the numbers of UK domestic air passengers has fallen by 

nearly 20% since 2007-08. While this drop has clearly been in part the product of the 

recession and continuing economic challenges, the fact that APD for a domestic flight was £5 

per passenger per flight in 2007-08 and is now £13 per passenger per flight has undoubtedly 

had an impact. 

 

4.2 Flybe commissioned an economic analysis by Oxera of the regional impact of APD which 

showed that a reduction in the tax for the regions but not London has relatively little impact on 

London itself - mainly because the proportionate impact on regional airports of a small 

percentage of passengers switching from London is quite substantial.  

4.3 Flybe argued strongly in our response to the Treasury’s consultation that any reform of 

the banding structure of APD must remove the inherent unfairness that means UK domestic 

passengers pay the tax on both legs of their journey, while those flying abroad pay just once 

Tudalen 37



 

Page 4 of 5 

because APD is a departure tax and only applies to outbound flights from the UK. The fact 

that a return passenger travelling between Belfast City and Glasgow (208 miles) pays double 

the tax that someone flying between Glasgow and Dalaman in Eastern Turkey does (4,086 

miles) is not just inequitable - it is scandalous. Although the Westminster government decided 

against such an amendment, Flybe still believes that this ‘double hit’ must be addressed in 

order to safeguard UK domestic aviation and UK regional economic competitiveness.   

 

4.4 The Westminster government recognised, both in its APD consultation document and 

response, the important role played by aviation in supporting regional economies. The 

economic development of any region is dependent upon the access and communications into 

and out of that region. Any reform of taxation must take into account the needs of the UK 

regions and not fall for media spin that all domestic aviation is bad. The Government must 

strive to protect communities and businesses where flying is a necessity, not a luxury. The 

vast majority of domestic flying (some 70%) is time-sensitive business travel and Visiting 

Friends and Relatives (VFR). Such flying is essential to the UK regional economies both 

directly in business travel and through the support to employment mobility and social 

cohesion in VFR traffic and is patently more important than ‘fly away’ tourism that contributes 

nothing to ‘UK plc’.  

 

4.5 Flybe supports the devolution of APD to Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales. Should 

such devolution happen, Flybe would recommend checks and balances being in place to 

safeguard regional services ahead of tax breaks for ‘vanity routes’ to long-haul destinations 

that would otherwise not be economically viable. 

 

- ENDS - 

Tudalen 38



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Tudalen 39


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a meysydd awyr Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth
	3 Ymchwiliad i gysylltedd rhyngwladol drwy borthladdoedd a meysydd awyr Cymru - sesiwn dystiolaeth

